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THE VILLAGE OF HUNTING VALLEY
Marcourt Farms Chagrin River Restoration Project
Responses to Contractor Inquiries – Final Addendum

NOTICE TO BIDDERS:
•
•
•

The apparent lowest and best bidder will be notified by Friday, February 9th, 2018.
Contract award will occur on March 13th, 2018 at the Hunting Valley Village
Council meeting.
The Village of Hunting Valley discussed the possibility of a grant extension with
Ohio EPA and the agency has indicated it is amenable to an extension to
December 31, 2019 if necessary to complete the project.

1. When is the deadline to submit additional questions?
All questions must be submitted to Heather Elmer at helmer@crwp.org or 440-975-3870
by Monday, January 29 at 5:00 pm. This document will be updated and posted to the
Village of Hunting Valley website as additional inquiries are received.
2. Can Contractors conduct additional site visits?
Contractors may conduct additional site visits with prior notification to the Village. Please
contact Heather Elmer at helmer@crwp.org or (440) 975-3870 at least 24 hours prior to
planned site visits.
3. What is the weight limit for the Burton Trail Bridge?
The Burton Trail bridge was designed for the AASHTO
HL-93 vehicular live load. This is the typical design
loading used for all new highway bridges by ODOT. The
loading for Burton Trail consisted of one lane of a Design
Truck or a Design Tandem placed on the bridge
concurrently with a Design Lane load of 640 pounds per
linear foot. The load case, Truck or Tandem, which
produced the worst case loading for the location on the
bridge was used. The AASHTO specification sections
showing the design loads follow below.
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4. Is Courtney Trail built to ODOT specifications?
No. Courtney Trail is a private road. The Village would prefer that contractors keep
equipment off this road as much as possible.
5. Are there any water lines that will affect the project?
There is a water line on the west side of Courtney Trail, but this will not impact the project.
6. Is the HOA on board with the project?
The HOA is on board with the project and open to the Village’s lead. The Village will invite
the HOA to attend plan review meetings. The HOA president and landowner, Dominic
Visconsi Jr., and/or his property manager, may be interested in attending project meetings.
7. Has the Army Corps of Engineers been notified about this project?
No.
8. Is quick permitting anticipated? If the project area extends beyond 500 feet, an
individual rather than nationwide Section 404 permit will be required.
The Village has discussed the possibility of a grant extension with Ohio EPA and the
agency indicated it is amenable to an extension to December 31, 2019 if necessary to
complete the project.
9. Is the November 30 planting completion date flexible?
The contractor may propose an alternative timeframe for completing planting activities
provided all project deliverables are completed by June 1, 2019 as noted in Section C of
the RFP. The Village’s Ohio EPA grant expires on June 30, 2019. Temporary and
permanent soil stabilization for erosion and sediment control must meet all state and local
permitting requirements.
10. How is the timeframe determined for working in a river?
This is a seasonal salmonid habitat. As noted on page 5 of the RFP, in-water construction
work must be completed between June 30 - September 14 unless an in-water work waiver
is obtained.
11. Can the fencing on the bridge be removed?
Guardrail and fencing on the bridge may be removed and replaced if necessary. The
southeast corner of guardrail is slightly damaged which will be documented when
Contractor completes pre-construction video.
12. Can the Village provide its fees for plan review and permits?
A permit application for the Village of Hunting Valley is attached.
13. Is the landowner across the river aware of the project? The point bar is mainly on
that landowner’s property. Would it be possible to use the sand bar material in this
stabilization project?
The Village has reached out to the neighboring landowner to request permission to use
this material. This response will be updated if permission is obtained.
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14. Can the chain link fence be removed?
The fence is falling over the embankment and buried in some locations. The Contractor
may remove the fence north of the project and the contractor will not be required to replace
it.
15. Are the two culverts in the project area active? Will a headwall be required for either
outfall?
The corrugated culvert at the northern end of the project area is likely abandoned and can
be terminated. The reinforced concrete pipe at the southern end of the project is active
and conveys water from the Courtney Trail catch basin. The Village does not anticipate
that headwalls be required to modify these outfalls, fabric and rip-rap should be
acceptable.
16. How many trees will need to be removed?
The contractor should seek to preserve as many trees as feasible while reaching the
streambank stabilization goals of the project. Any loss in stabilization caused from cutting
down the trees should be considered in the planting plan.
17. Is there a lot of canoe/kayak traffic?
Canoe/kayak traffic on the river is minimal and unlikely to be an issue. The Village advises
putting up a sign if this is a concern.
18. Will price be included in the Village’s selection criteria?
Yes, this is a “not to exceed” contract. The Village will select the most qualified contractor
to complete the work at the lowest price. Other selection criteria include contractor
qualifications, understanding of the scope of services, and level of service to be provided.
The maximum amount shall not exceed $385,500. The proposal should include a budget
break-down that does not exceed this amount. However, if the contractor feels that
additional work is needed that cannot fit within the budget, this should be proposed as a
separate alternate expansion of the project to be considered by the Village and
landowners.
19. Is there a required percent utilization of disadvantaged business enterprises?
There are no MBE/WBE percentage requirements. However, pursuant to Executive Order
Nos. 2008-12S and 2008-13S, the contractor shall make a good faith effort to purchase
from Ohio companies and from Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) and Encouraging
Diversity, Growth and Equity (EDGE) program vendors for all goods and services acquired
for this project.
20. Does the 1 acre of plantings need to be in a specific area?
No. One acre is an explicit deliverable, but planting locations may be adjusted within the
project area to achieve maximum benefit for streambank stabilization and riparian
restoration goals of this project.
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21. Was the conceptual plan for this project created by a design firm?
The weirs proposed in the conceptual plan were included based on experience with past
bank stabilization projects. As noted on page 1 of the RFP, candidates are encouraged to
comment on any work which may not be needed to complete the project. Suggestions that
minimize the use of rock while achieving project restoration goals are particularly
encouraged.
22. Should the contractor keep the logs from the trees for the residents? Sometimes
contractors are asked to cut the log lengths for the residents instead of hauling off
site.
All trees removed and not incorporated into the project design and construction should be
removed and stumps ground.
23. Why is there such a tight timeframe for this project?
Finalizing contracts with the landowners took about a year.
24. Are the per occurrence limits of not less than $25,000,000 in Article 13: 13.2.5 of the
design-build agreement and professional liability of $15,000,000 in Article 13:
13.2.5.6 applicable to this project?
The amounts in the RFP will control and the form agreement attached to the RFP will be
amended to reflect the amounts in the RFP when it is finalized for execution. The
professional liability coverage will be amended to a reasonable amount based upon the
size and scope of the Project, as determined by the Village (in its discretion).
25. If the prime contractor is the constructor, who is partnering with a professional
design firm, must the contractor hold this limit? Or, can the Design Partner carry
the Professional Liability?
The prime contractor is the Design-Builder. The Design-Builder is responsible for the
design of the Project and thus responsible for ensuring that the required professional
liability insurance coverage is provided. That said, the Design Partner (as a subcontractor
/ sub consultant) to the Design-Builder can carry the professional liability insurance (the
Village and Owners will be required to be named as additional insured).
26. Do we need to video the road?
Per page 4 of the RFP, any areas disturbed to access the site, including roadways/right
of ways must be restored to former condition at the close of this project at the Contractor’s
expense. Contractor must obtain photographs and video of Chagrin River Road, Burton
Trail and Courtney Trail and submit copies to the Village Engineer and Marcourt Farms
Homeowners’ Association prior to the commencement of construction.
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27. Can construction access be directly off Burton Trail rather than off Courtney Trail
as shown in Exhibit A of the RFP?
Access directly from Burton Trail is allowable. See map below.

28. Can you provide clarification on contractor responsibility for post-construction
monitoring?
The contractor shall be responsible for all project monitoring activities and reporting per
permitting requirements. Contractors should budget for all monitoring requirements within
their permitting budget and will need to bill for all expenses before the grant period ends.
29. Will the Village accept red-lined as-builts or will the Village require surveyed asbuilts?
Red-lined as-builts are acceptable to the Village.
30. Are permit fees to be included in the bid price?
Yes, include permit fees.
31. Does the contractor need to be registered prior to submitting the bid proposal, or
prior the start of work, if selected?
Register only prior to start of the project.
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32. Should we include a statement of acceptance of the terms & conditions of the D/B
Agreement and General Conditions, or include a red-lined copy of that document
along with our bid proposal?
Yes, please include Red Line copy of document along with bid proposal.
33. There is no mention of these in the RFP, but as a matter of due diligence, please
verify that a bid bond is not required.
After further review with the Village’s legal counsel, it has been determined that a bid bond
is not required. A performance bond and 2-year maintenance bond is required as noted
on page 6 of the RFP.
34. In regard to the prevailing wage requirement, please verify that the prevailing wage
requirement pertains only to construction labor and services, and is not applicable
to the design, engineering and permitting labor.
Prevailing Wage requirements will only apply to construction labor and services.
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